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Incline Village, Nevada - 9/13/2023 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o-

(No audio during call to order.)
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR DENT:  Thank you for that.  Next

item, item B, roll call of trustees.
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES

CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Tonking?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Here.
CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Schmitz?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Here.
CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Tulloch?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Here.
CHAIR DENT:  And Trustee Noble has let us

know, he will not be present for this evening's
meeting.  I'm Trustee Dent, so four out of the five
trustees are present.  We do have a quorum.

Moving on to item C, initial public
comment.
C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT

CHAIR DENT:  You will be allowed three
minutes for your initial public comment.  And before

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 25 of 309



   5
we open it up to public comment, I just want to
mention that item G 4 has been removed from the
agenda.

I will open it up to public comment.
MR. WILSON:  Good evening.  My name is Don

Wilson.  My wife and I are full-time residents of
Incline, and over the last few years have become
aspiring golfers.  

I'd like to introduce myself tonight and
express my interest in being considered for the
at-large role on the Golf Committee.  Thank you to
the Board of Trustees for your assistance and
consideration for this.  

Our IVGID amenities are unique and
precious resources that should be protected and
nurtured.  I am a strong advocate for community
service and support, and would welcome the chance to
apply my experience and passion toward this common
good.  

Over the course of my career, I've been an
entrepreneur, corporate executive, board member,
volunteering in capacities ranging from
not-for-profit organizations to youth sports.  That
experience has included P and L ownership with full
budgeting, operational and capital improvement,
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strategic planning.  Experience ranging from
startups to $100 million projects.  I've spent my
career thinking outside the box to find innovative
paths to success.  

I've reviewed the packets of the
candidates, and it is an impressive group.  The
important question becomes:  What makes me
different?  

I believe there are three ways in which I
can complement the other members of the committee:

First, I focus on bringing people
together.  I don't have any ulterior motives, other
than the best interest of our residents.  I spent a
career building consensus, finding common ground,
and mutually beneficial wins.

In the corporate world, I've been
fortunate to be a part of companies who excel in
their culture and emphasize the how as much as the
what.  I would bring a goal of operational
excellence, but more importantly, a desire to find
solutions that benefit all interested parties, and a
focus on the people and the how just as much as the
bottom line.  

Second, my career experience in tackling
the toughest challenges and fining operational
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excellence across many industries.  As a software
entrepreneur, a transformational execute in the food
industry, and with an operational excellence
concentration in business school, my goal has always
been finding ways to become better.  Not just better
economically, but better holistically, finding wins
for all stakeholders.  

Finally, diversity in perspective.  I'm
relatively new to golf, if you count 40 rounds this
year as new, I'm still a beginner, and wholly
embrace it with a passion.  This is a perspective
that I think is invaluable to reach that
demographic.  Also, I'm still working.  While
retirement will come one day, I do think the casual
golfer having to work around a work schedule is also
an important constituency.  

Finally, I don't currently belong to a
golf club, with no plans to do so anytime soon, and
I believe the Golf Committee would be best served by
a well-rounded set of perspectives, members to
represent golf clubs, which are a vital component to
the culture and success of our courses, but also
members to represent the casual, aspiring golfer
with no additional ties.

Thank you all for the opportunity to be
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considered.

MS. McKOWEN:  Trish McKowen.  Incline
Village resident.

It's clear to many residents in town that
the board meeting that should have taken place last
Wednesday was moved to tonight for several reasons.
The Board has said it was because they missed the
posting time.  You could have rescheduled the
meeting on another day that didn't disrupt multiple
events happening this evening, like the Incliner
event, and another large gathering at Ski Beach.  

It's clear to me that Trustees Schmitz,
Dent, and Tulloch did not want any more public
comment prior to the submission of the petition
signatures.  

I will be reading a public comment tonight
from Christy Wells, who could not attend this
evening because she's in charge of running an
Incliner event at Aspen Grove.  Here is her public
comment:  

"In reviewing tonight's agenda, I
see that Frank Wright has applied
for the Golf Committee.  I
respectfully ask that you void his
application and ban him from
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applying from any future IVGID
committees.  
"I'm submitting several recent
interactions with Mr. Wright that
he has had with community members
on Nextdoor, all clearly showing
he is not capable of having civil
discussions about difficult
topics.  And please note this is
just a small collection of posts
that have taken place over the
last month.  There are hundreds
more.  And you can hear how he
speaks about IVGID staff and
community members every time he
leaves a public comment.  
"I believe the Golf Committee
would be faced with some tough
challenges in the coming year, and
I do not feel that Frank has the
ability to keep his calm when
interacting with IVGID staff or
other community members.  
"I'm submitting these examples for
the record and trust you will make
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the right decisions for IVGID
staff, fellow community members,
and those in the community who
regularly have to interact with
him."
"Thank you on behalf of Christy
Wells."  

And she went ahead and she brought in some
of these interactions he's had in the community, and
she wants these in the public record.

MS. HOLLAND:  Good evening.  I'm Katherine
Holland.  I live at 250 Pine Cone Road.  

And I'm also a candidate for the Golf
Committee.  I'm very disappointed that the
interviews were not initially held two weeks ago.
And then nothing happened again last week.  And I'm
disappointed that we're not going to have interviews
tonight.  I think it's really important to have
two-way conversations with potential candidates
because I think that's when you really find out the
truth about people.  

But, nonetheless, I still remain a
candidate.  I'm very seriously concerned that we had
the resignation of Darren Howard yesterday, our
Director of Golf and Community Relations.  I think
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this is a very large loss for our community and our
golf course.  But I remain passionate about and
committed to being a productive member of the Golf
Committee, if I'm selected, and continuing the work
that I did on the prior Golf Committee.  

Thank you.
MS. MARTINI:  Good evening.  Margaret

Martini.
The reduction of the rec fee was required

to comply with NRS.  How many of those who signed
the recall petition took the time to read the
statute and understand the reason that the rec fee
was reduced?  This made it necessary to reduce the
punch card value.  Not a hard concept to grasp.  You
don't even have to be a math wizard to comprehend.
You are not prohibited from bringing guests to the
beach, and it does not cost one dollar more to do so
by buying beach passes or accompanying them with
your credit card.  

Beach crowing was number one in all the
surveys and the loss of purchasing unlimited punch
cards has eliminated the overcrowding.  And the
Picture Pass Card parking rule has made it more
convenient for parking for property owners.  Is that
a bad thing?
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Another disinformation incentive to sign

the petition was accusing Sara of losing the
Duffield grant money.  I challenge any one of you
that supported the recall to produce actual
documentation that commits Duffield to that amount.
In actuality, it was the reduction of the scope of
project to include a women's gym, dedicated
gymnastics room only for only women.  The equipment
needed for men is, of course, different and was not
part of the plan as submitted.  

As a government, it is not possible to
provide facilities to one gender.  Staff informed
Sara that adding on to the plan was not a very
viable solution, so it was not part of the plan to
accommodate a men's gym.  

So before you run with the outrageous idea
that you have lost something, think about the
legality of doing just the one planned women's gym.
Put on your thinking cap and look at the legal
ramification and the cost of such.  

The Secretary of State has dismissed the
claims of violation regarding the loan between
Matthew Dent and the Doblers.  It was determined
that Mr. Dent submitted the FDS in full compliance
with Nevada law.  There were no violations and
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allegations in the election integrity violation
reports are dismissed.  That horse has been beaten
to death, unnecessarily, if those accusers had taken
the time to read the Secretary of State
determination.  

How many recallers have taken the time to
research all of the false accusations or are they
just following three uninformed initiators of the
recall petition into the clueless pit screaming
"recall" all the way?  Sadly, not informing
yourselves of the true facts has its pitfalls of
classifying yourselves as total follow the leaders.

MR. KATZ:  Good evening.  Aaron Katz.  I
have several written statements I've submitted to be
added to the minutes of the meeting.  

I'm here to speak about how much more of
Susan Herron does the public have to endure?  She's
a glorified secretary, paid like the Director of
Human Resources.  She uses the IVGID magazine as a
propaganda tool, telling us the dignity and respect
she allegedly has for us when her acts demonstrate
she has none.  

She commits Open Meeting Law violation
after violation.  She couldn't post the agenda for
the Board's September 13 meeting in a timely manner,
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so the meeting had to be canceled or another Open
Meeting Law violation.  

And now she pulls a waiver stunt for
tonight's meeting, insofar as character misconduct
and professional competence is concerned, associated
with our applicants for the Golf Advisory Committee.
She tells applicants execution of the waiver is
required.  Then she drafts a document which recites
that the waiver was voluntarily signed, and she
knows this is untrue.

She notices the agenda item to be for the
selection of members to the Advisory Committee, then
she turns it into a hearing on the character of
applicants, which hasn't even been noticed.  She
knows she hasn't complied with the notice
requirements of NRS 241.033, yet hypes this fact by
coming up with these waivers instead.  

Who decided to turn this into an ambush
hearing for members or applicants to the committee?
Who decided there would be waivers?  Where in the
NRS does it talk about a waiver for a situation like
this?  It's just one thing after another after
another.  Her loyalties are with special interests,
rather than the public.  

I ask Ms. Herron, resign.  Resign like
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your fellow colleagues.  Resign like Darren Howard.
And if you refuse to resign, I ask the Board to
agendize a meeting to terminate her employ after
giving her proper notice and the opportunity to be
heard.  

Thank you very much.
MS. USINGER:  Caroline Usinger, Incline

Village.  
I'd like to reiterate that Mr. Katz' goal

is to eliminate IVGID.  He has said it on multiple
occasions, his desires to get rid of the entire
staff, so all of his comments should be put in that
context.

I wanted to talk today about the elephant
in the room again.  The elephant in the room today,
and has been, is that IVGID has no real general
manager, lost its finance manager, its controller,
its food and beverage manager, public works, as of
yesterday, the golf manager, even the attorneys, as
well as countless other staff.  And yet the meeting
minutes today talk about protecting Mr. Dobler and
the Golf Committee, which is a legitimate thing, but
they don't talk about the item in the room, which is
that no one wants to work for IVGID, and that's
because it's a toxic organization.  Nobody wants to
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work for you.  Employees don't want to work for you.
Senior managers don't want to work for you.  Vendors
don't want to work for you.  Volunteers don't want
to work for you.  This has to be addressed or IVGID
will not ever recover.  

You're talking about doing little things,
which I call Band-Aids, but these are serious and
needs operation.  The operation needs to be that all
of the hostility towards the staff has to be
eliminated.  You are shooting IVGID in the foot, and
you are supposed to be protecting it.  This is
inexcusable.  

An operation is needed, not a Band-Aid.
And the operation is the recall.  And I'm sorry.  I
don't really want to go through a recall, but a
Band-Aid won't help.  Being nice to -- or having
Mr. Dobler get off the committee because it will
look better, will not help.  

What will help in the resignation of Sara
Schmitz and Matthew Dent with a commitment by the
remaining of the Board to take this operation, look
at what it did to the employees, and make an
absolute change.

MR. EPPOLITO:  Hi.  My name is John
Eppolito.  I'm a resident of 27 years.  Been a real
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estate broker for 25 of those years.  

The petition, I don't like how it's
dividing our community.  No matter which side you're
on, it bothers me.  I'm going to save the rest of
those thoughts for another day when I actually have
a chance to write them down because I don't want to
say anything wrong.  

What I mostly wanted to talk about tonight
is the bigger issue that's going to affect everybody
in the region, and that's all the development.  

I spent the day at Washoe County
Commissioners' meeting today, and they passed the
land bill, and that was passed three to two, imagine
that.  You guys don't know what that's like, right?
And it was passed three to two.  And the reason I
even went to the meeting is because one of the
Commissioners came into another meeting I was at the
other day and said it got rushed, and that person
wanted people to come speak.  

The biggest thing that I got out of the
meeting is the economic development.  There's
probably -- if this continues to go through, and
this comes from one of our Senators, Rosen.  If this
continues to go through, there will probably be a
lot more land for development in Reno,
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unfortunately.  And the thing is is that is also
going to impact us.  

Anyone who listened to Cindy Gustafson at
one of the meetings in Placer County, she said this
summer, that there's more people than ever within an
hour's drive of Lake Tahoe, which is part of our
issue in the summer.  I believe she said a million
people within an hour drive of Lake Tahoe.  

And the last two summers are the busiest
we've ever had.  Kings Beach is worse than it is
over here, for now.

Not too long ago, I told Ann Nichols,
quote, "I used to think you we're crazy, Ann.  Now
it's worse than you said it was going to be."  End
quote.  And that's because there's more developments
than -- Ann was initially fighting one development.
Now there's twelve large developments in process,
the north shore, west shore, and plus the 800 houses
in Martis Valley.  That's what we should be
fighting; not fighting amongst each other over
silly -- I think that are silly things, but I'm not
going to get into that.  That's what I think we
should be focusing on as a community.

The -- yeah, so we've already changed the
zoning here in town, but that's not just for the one
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project.  That's for that whole core.  So I don't
know how many more -- and those units are between
$2.5 and $5 million, hardly low income or employee
housing, and that's what's going to happen.  We're
going to have more of those -- Incline is going to
be a small part of it, but all the people close by,
plus all the big developments on the California
side, it's going to greatly impact us, and we're
going to have a heck of a time getting out of here
in case of a fire, especially if we have to go that
way.  I think that's what we should be focusing on.  

Thank you very much.
CHAIR DENT:  Can we go to Zoom, please?
MR. DOBLER:  Yes.  (Inaudible) to obtain a

recall signature no matter what is false, what is
made, board policies are broken, NRS is violated,
and confidentiality is tossed aside.  

Now about the Capital Investment
Committee.  It was created because the engineering
staff simply continued to fail in all aspects of
their jobs.  It would not follow board policies and
were unwilling to act in a responsible manner.  A
few examples over the last two years:  

In 2021, the staff awarded a contract for
Phase 1 of the Mountain Golf Course cart path rehab,
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which was not in accordance with big documents.  The
bike path park was never complete five years ago and
the permit expired leaving opened-up possibility of
liability.  When the engineering design was
completed last year, the total budget was only
80,000, but the construction bid alone was over
750,000.  The project is dormant.  

The contract to remodel the Rec Center
locker rooms exceeded the 969,000 budget by 208,000,
21 percent.  The Board was never informed and board
policies were violated.  

The current project to remodel to Diamond
Peak kitchen and food service area was upside down
from the start.  A 516,000 contract was awarded, but
the contractor forgot to include kitchen equipment.
A recent change order was issued for 298,000, a 58
percent increase, and the total was above the
original budget of 620,000.  An additional 321,000
was slipped into the 2024 budget to cover the
kitchen equipment and additional work.  

The latest is the CMAR contract with
Granite Construction, wherein the CMAR percentage
fee was left blank, but the engineering staff
continues to pay 14 percent of costs based on some
ambiguous conversation which took place one year
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ago.  It is against the law to pay a contractor for
items not in a contract.  

Project summaries for 2023/'24 have not
been completed, yet the District is almost three
months into the new fiscal year.  

After careful consideration and based on
the above examples, I have decided to step aside as
a committee member.  My views on how to perform
capital projects differs too much with the
approaches by IVGID staff.  Please make this written
statement part of the minute meetings.  

Thank you.
MS. MILLER:  Judith Miller for the record.
I regret I'm unable to attend in person

this evening.  I hope the Board will consider my
application to be on their very first
board-appointed venue advisory committee.  

I'd like to briefly discuss the waiver.  I
haven't signed the waiver.  It would force me to
relinquish any right to privacy or fairness.  If I
were an employee, the Board could consider character
and competence only in a closed session and only
after proper notice.  

I've been informed that this so-called
voluntary waiver is required, allowing any false
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accusation from any source to be discussed in a
public meeting and without allowing me to be
represented by an attorney or provide evidence.
Even the most innocent lamb among us would be
foolish to sign such a waiver.  I hope the Board
will recognize that this is uncalled for.  

I've applied for and served on a number of
public boards and committees.  None required a
waiver.  All you need to do is avoid discussing our
character and professional competence.  You've got
12 candidates, many of whom are personally known to
you.  If you truly believe this type of discussion
had to take place, it should have been in a closed
session, just like it is for employees.  I trust
you're going to do the right thing.  

Moving forward, I'm ready to roll up my
sleeves as a member of this committee.  As I've
demonstrated before, I'm a worker.  I can do
research, crunch numbers, delve into land use
regulations, write survey questions and reports,
make presentations, and even drive a tractor.  But
most important of all, I can work collaboratively.
I believe I'll be an effective member of the Golf
Committee.  

On another agenda item, I fully support
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the request by interim Director McGee.  However, I
would like you to consider a change in the reporting
structure for the internal auditor position.  The
job announcement draft states the position reports
to the GM.  Best practices and my own personal
experience in public administration requires this
position report, functionally, to the Board directly
or to the Audit Committee, and administratively to
the GM.  That's should be made clear in the
announcement.  

Here's a quote from a Pete Marwick audit
committee publication:  Internal audit has for all
practical purposes a dual reporting relationship
where the head of internal audit reports to
executive management, ideally the CEO, or GM in our
case, for assistance in establishing direction,
support, and administrative matters, and to the
audit committee for strategic direction,
reinforcement, and accountability.  

I think you will find similar
recommendations in most other organizational
guidelines.  Please discuss this with staff and make
the necessary modification to ensure the
independence of this position.  

Thank you.
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MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright.  Crystal Bay.  
I'm not going to restate everything that

Ms. Miller just stated on this waiver.  It's
horrible that this thing was delivered to me
yesterday, and I was told to sign it.  Then I had
another one, and I was told to sign that and was
required.  

I don't think any board member knows
anything about this waiver.  It's not appropriate
for a volunteer committee; it's more of a personnel,
and I'm not even sure if it was appropriately
handled.  But let's skip through that because that's
already been dealt with.  

Let's talk about me, as a citizen of this
community, and what I have done here.  I have been
here for 40 years, 40, four zero, plus, I have
uncovered all kinds of things and exposed them to
the District.  And let's just talk about the Golf
Committee.  I exposed the tee times that were given
out in February to private golf clubs on a public
course.  PGA fees paid for people in those private
clubs that you and I can't enjoin because we're not
qualified for their standards and their
requirements.  We had to pay for the PGA fees for
out-of-town members that are members of these clubs.
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And the members from out of town and the members of
all these clubs, they got all the preferred tee
times that we're paying with our rec fee and the
losses on that golf course.  These secret clubs have
all kinds of rules and regulations.  

I served on the Ordinance 7 Committee for
15 months.  And I hate to tell you, but I'm the one
that uncovered the fact that the employees cannot be
on the beaches.  Yes, I did.  Margaret Martini and I
kept pushing that issue.  We finally got an attorney
to give us a ruling.  We saved the beaches.  It's
really ironic that somebody from Crystal Bay had to
save Incline beaches.

It's sad that we have to be in this
situation with the recall.  It's sad for a lot of
things that are going on here.  I have worked in a
way to try to diffuse the people who are coming into
our community and doing things that are very bad.
The recall is very, very bad.  

Tonight we had Ms. McKowen get up.  I
don't know this lady.  I don't know who she is, and
she has a friend, Christy Wells, and these two work
in concert.  Tonight, she took a shot at me, and she
has all these things that supposedly I said on
Facebook.  Well, if I said them on Facebook, they
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should be taken down if they're not right, but it's
not part of my character.  It's part of me trying to
express to people that we got a bad element in this
town.  

Because of all the things that are going
on right now and the attack mode that these people
are in, I am respectfully declining to serve on this
Golf Committee.  It would be beneficial to you if I
did, but I think it's better that we put some new
blood out there and do it.  I'm just going to
withdraw my application --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MS. KNAAK:  Yolanda Knaak, Martis Peak

Drive.
I just wanted to weigh-in on something

that John Eppolito has mentioned, and we do have
some serious concerns with zoning change for Area 1
in our town.  It's putting us over 56 (inaudible)
risk, something we really need to take a stand on.

Then also these land deals, it's
practically impossible to get information.  If I had
known that it was going to be in the meeting today,
the Washoe County Commissioners' meeting, I would
have tried to weigh-in on it at that time.  

But this is something that, you know,
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taking -- having the federal government take our
land is (inaudible) correct, is not what should be
happening.  So it's something we really need to
oppose.  

Thank you so much.
MS. CARS:  Linda Cars.
I just wanted to say that, twice, I

submitted documents about Cliff Dobler that were
part of the public domain, and they were not put
into the record.  I'm not going to repeat the
horrible things and the interactions that he had,
but I am only saying that I think the Board of
Trustees should focus on -- not on what happened,
but on the actions of the person.

You seem to have the wrong priorities in
terms of people that are on staff that have very,
very bad interactions with staff.  They should not
be on committees.  

I also have been listening to all the
comments, and it's just unfathomable the lies that
Margaret Martini and all these people view about the
recall committee.  The recall, there's not a
committee.  The recall is a grassroots organization
of hundreds and hundreds of people in this community
from all walks of life.  They are not representing
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one topic at all.  And they should be listened to.
The people supporting the recall speak the facts,
they don't tell lies.  And the truth will come out.  

And we hope that Sara and Matthew will not
put the community through a recall election and do
the right thing and resign.  The latest losses of
the Director of Golf, the Golf Pro show how poorly
you have been working with the community and the
horrors you have created that you can't keep staff.
Please do the right thing.  Please spare us the
agony of an election.  But if you don't want to,
there will be one.

Thank you.
MS. McKOWEN:  Kevin McKowen.  335 Ski Way.
You know, there's so many issues going on

in town.  No one likes the divisiveness.  But, you
know, after being in business for 45 years, what I
find atrocious, if I had all my senior managers quit
in a company ran, I would immediately find out who
they reported to and get rid of them.  

So Sara and Matt, I mean, you're sitting
back, you know the recall's going on, and I think
the appropriate thing to do is to resign.  

Now as far as Frank Wright goes, Frank
Wright's called my wife every name in the book.
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Frank Wright has two aliases on Nextdoor, everybody
knows it.  He is just a thorn in this community and
this town's side.  

So look, we have a lot of people in town
that would be great on the IVGID board.  Here's why
they will not run, which hurts us all.  It's because
of the angry eight.  Most of them would rather shoot
themselves in the face than deal with all the angry
eight, Frank Wright, you know, all the people,
right?  Katz and Martini.  They are all lovely
people, I'm sure, but I don't know why they stay in
town when they just can't stand it here.  I mean,
just leave.  And create the harmony that we all
moved here for, whether we retired here.

The other thing I liked Mr. Eppolito
saying, yeah, there is an issue of us granting
rights to multimillion dollar condos being built
when Reno and Carson has great jobs, why can't we
get people?  Why do the several restaurants in town
open three or four nights?  Gee, I'll tell you why:
They can't find help.  Why?  Because people can't
afford to live here, and they're not coming up from
Reno and Carson, especially in the winter, with the
weather.  

Darren Howard's a great guy.  He and Nick
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Holligan both resigned today.  These are great --
Nick is from Scotland, he's got an A-plus record.
What is going on?  And Kyle.  Kyle and I have been
friends for years.  Kyle left because of the Board.
Dee left because of the Board.  Bill left because of
the Board.  

It seems like we are taking crazy pills.
We got to get back sanity.  Look, the recall, in the
all documents they had, we're factual.  

Now Sara is knocking door to door, calling
people, asking them to recant on their signature,
which is abysmal, I think, because when you sign a
document, that means you know clearly and you're
sane in signing the document that you know what
you're signing.  And she's going, "I want you just
to withdraw your name."  What?  I mean, what is
going on?  Sara, look -- 

(Expiration of three minutes.)
CHAIR DENT:  Anyone else on Zoom?
MATT:  That was our final comment on Zoom.
CHAIR DENT:  All right.  That'll close out

public comment.  Moving on to item D.  
D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

CHAIR DENT:  Any questions or concerns
with the agenda?  We've already removed item G 4.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'd like to move item F

1 from the consent calendar to the general business.
I made a request previously that we had details of
why this payment was due.  This is, I understand,
something going back to the previous board, but
there's still no explanation of it, just that
somehow we're due 7,200, so I'd like to move this to
general business, please.

CHAIR DENT:  Does anyone have an issue
with moving that to general business?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  (No microphone.)
CHAIR DENT:  Regarding that item?  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.
CHAIR DENT:  We can have a discussion on

that item at that point, if you're opposed to moving
that, now would be the time to bring that up.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  My only concern with
removing it, and I think Annie would have to speak
to this, because it was discussed in a legal
nonmeeting, how much of it can we disclose?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yeah.  To the extent your
question, Trustee Tulloch, are going to relate to
what's in the staff report or if staff can clarify
what's in the staff report, that would be okay.  

But it's a good point by Trustee Tonking,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  32
we should probably limit the discussion to what has
been provided by staff and brief answers to any
questions that you might have.  But we should be
careful not to delve in to anything that could be
considered legal in nature.

CHAIR DENT:  Thank you for the reminder on
that. 

Any other questions or concerns with the
agenda?  

All right.  The agenda is approved.  We
will move item F 1, that will become item G 1.
Moving on to reports to the board.  
E.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

E 1. 
CHAIR DENT:  Report E 1 and E 2.  Report E

1 is interim General Manager's monthly status
report.  Can be found on pages 4 through 34 of your
board packet.  

MR. BANDELIN:  With the interest of
providing and improving communication, staff has
provided a different look to the General Manager's
report within your packet.  Staff will be providing
a monthly venue status report for key venues and
operations to the Board of Trustees and the
community.  Looking for some feedback on those
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particular reports this evening.  Do not have staff
to, like, actually answer any questions on the
reports this evening.  They are not here, but
certainly looking for some feedback on how to
improve as we continue to provide a different look.  

These reports will be prepared for public
works, parks and recreation, finance and accounting,
human resources, IT, and ski and the golf, when
they're in season, or possibly other times when
there is relevant information from those venues to
report on.  

Not really in the report, but I thought it
might be a good opportunity -- if I can expand on
this a little bit next month in the Diamond Peak
report, I just wanted to share where we are with the
Diamond Peak special use permit application.  This
application is nearly complete.  I've been working
with the U.S. Forest Service administrator for the
Lake Tahoe Basin Unit, and a couple more things to
do.  And I would imagine by the end of next week
that this application process will kind of be
forwarded to the actual Forest supervisor with the
Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit for review and
acceptance.  And then I can bring back the special
use permit to the Board of Trustees.  
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I might say that if there's been any kind

of misconception about the acreage of the special
use permit, that the -- all the infrastructure,
including lifts, facilities, snow pipe, trails and
so forth, all the constructed trails, those are all
within District private property.  So, the special
use permit is really just the related ski area, ski
terrain, what we call the "Solitude Canyon area" of
about 296 acres, and then Golden Eagle Bowl, about
96 acres.  

So, even if they're -- in the future, if
there were concerns about the permit, the permit is
for ten years, that it doesn't really affect the
actual facility or the District-owned property.  

Just a couple of updates:  Starting at the
end of this week and through next week, we will be
doing pavement maintenance, a lot of the community
services venue.  The Mountain Golf Course cart path
project is nearly complete.  Construction work
schedule to be completed by the end of October.
Then returning in the spring for the slurry sealing
project.  Phase 1(b), is we're calling it, of the
effluent export line replacement project of 2,200
linear feet is also scheduled to be completed within
the last week of October.  
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So, again, kind of a different look to the

GM report.  We just want to continue to be kind of
precise and accurate.  I think in the future,
working with the Director of Finance, getting caught
up a little bit, that we will see a lot more
financials within the report, even sources and uses
and acquisition.  Then be able to eventually work
with the Capital Improvement/Investment Committee,
and kind of report on capital projects in a little
bit more financial way versus just narratives.

CHAIR DENT:  Any follow-up questions from
my colleagues?

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I find the report much
easier to read.

The one thing I would just request, could
we, going forward, as it relates to golf, there's
nothing in here that see I that relates to food and
beverage or events.  And I think those are two
essential components of our business, and I would
like them to be included in the report.

As far as questions, I will follow up with
individual staff related to questions, given your
suggestion this evening.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Refreshing change.  A
report we can actually read and actually contains

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  36
information.  I think it's a great start.

I do have a question on page 13 with
regard to the Dog Park Committee.  I'm a little bit
confused.  It just doesn't seem to align with what
the previous direction from the Board.  I'd also be
concerned if there's a community survey going out
and a community forum just been hosted purely by the
Dog Park Committee, I don't think that was the
intention of the Board.  I don't think that was the
direction from the Board previously.

And I see statements like continued
community support for a dedicated dog park.  I think
that was one of the reasons for the survey going
out, to see if we did have that support.

I can take it up with Director Leijon, if
that's easier.

MR. BANDELIN:  Just consider that noted,
and I'll follow up.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  On that same subject, I
didn't realize that the area that they were
intending to encroach upon that goes toward the
stream area in that upper area, that is in the disc
golf.  So that would have an impact on that.  

So, you know, there were things that I
don't think we clearly understood.  And I agree with
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the comments made by Trustee Tulloch that I thought
we were going to be doing a community survey, and
then also surveying the dog owners.  

I was hoping that maybe we would have some
of that analysis already done.  But we'll sit tight.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I was just going to say
I think my understanding is that there was a
community survey, and we talked about possibly
having at one of our community forms, the topic be
the dog park.  I think that's where that's coming
from.

I think we gave direction to -- from the
Board to start doing the survey.  But if not, do we
need to bring the item back to make sure we can give
that direction?  Just so we can put it on the
agenda.

CHAIR DENT:  If that's something that
needs to come back at the next meeting, let's get it
on the agenda this week.

Any further discussion or comments?  I,
too, like the new format, so thank you for that.  It
is a little bit more clear to have everything broken
down by department.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I do recall that we
clearly gave direction to do a community survey.
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And also there was direction that was given by, I
believe, Director of Parks and Rec, that she wanted
to do some informal surveying of the dog owners.  

So, that direction was given.  I would
like to see it on our calendar to see the results of
that.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  We don't need to approve
the survey or anything; correct?

CHAIR DENT:  I think we already gave
direction --

TRUSTEE TONKING:  No.  I just mean we
don't have to approve the actual survey itself?

CHAIR DENT:  We've never approved a
survey, so no.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  I just know that
the last Dog Park Committee, we brought it back to
be approved, so I just wanted to clarify.

CHAIR DENT:  General Manger Bandelin,
perhaps you could get back to us offline regarding
this item.  Appreciate it.  Thank you.

Any other comments or questions regarding
the General Manager's report?

Seeing none, that will close out item E 1.
Moving on to item E 2, the treasurer's report,
payment of bills.
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E 2. 

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just on page 35 of the
packets, shows the major bill payments done per
month:  

3.18 million paid out, a large part of it,
to Granite Construction for the pipeline, the major
one's just over 2 million and a quarter of a million
to Granite Construction.  

NV Energy, our regular one.
Western Nevada Supply, 81k.  
Mike Menath Insurance, our annual

insurance premium, 225k.
Geotechnical Enviromental Services, 112k.

I believe that was also for the pipeline.  
Clark Equipment, Dell, for IT equipment,

and Dell, again, for their -- 
I would also like to say that I've been

working with interim Director of Finance, I think
next month's treasurer's report is going to be a lot
more informative, a lot more effective.  We've been
developing a financial report that should be --
actually meaningful and tells us what is happening.
I'd love to say it tells us what is in the bank, but
we still haven't reconciled the bank account, so
it'll give an approximation.  
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But, yes, I think you'll find a material

change in next month's treasurer's report.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Annie, I promise not to

go off script.
I just wanted to bring to the Board's

attention that we all received an email from a
constituent expressing concerns about the CMAR
contract with Granite.  

And I did take time and reviewed all of
those contracts, and I do have some questions in
regards to it.  And if we want to talk about that
any further, we can do that at the end of the
meeting with our update section.

CHAIR DENT:  Any other questions or
comments for our treasurer?

All right.  Seeing none, that will close
out item E 2.  Moving on to item F.  
F.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

CHAIR DENT:  We have removed item F 1.  We
do have the approval of the regular meeting minutes
for July 26th, we have the approval of the special
meeting minutes from August 24th, and we have the
approval of the regular meeting minutes for August
30th.

I'll entertain a motion.
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move the Board of

Trustees approve the consent calendar.
CHAIR DENT:  A motion's been made.  Is

there a second?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion by the Board?  
All those in favor, state aye.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.  
Motion passes, 4/0.  Thank you.  That will

close out the consent calendar.  Moving on to item G
1, formerly F 1.  
G.  GENERAL BUSINESS 

G 1. 
CHAIR DENT:  Approve and final payment in

the amount of $7,200 to Erickson, Thorpe and
Swainston for legal services in the Smith vs. IVGID
lawsuit.  This can be found on pages 37 through 38
of your board packet.

Trustee Tulloch, you did pull this item.
Did you want to ask a question of legal counsel?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I just -- the reason I'm
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asking is, obviously, this contract predates me on
the Board.  And I was under the impression the
previous board approval for amount of this had all
been settled.  That's just -- I'm curious with how
we're suddenly faced with another $7,200 for
something that -- a contract I believed to be
previously settled.  That was the reason -- I think
I expressed this last time this was on the agenda.
That's why I asked for some further information.

CHAIR DENT:  Annie, do you mind speaking
to this?  

MS. BRANHAM:  Sure.  My understanding of
the situation is that there was a final invoice for
the services provided by that firm.  I don't know if
it was that it just wasn't paid at the time, and
everyone didn't realize until many months had
passed, and that's why it came back up so late.  Or
if it was something where they weren't aware that
they hadn't billed for certain work they had done
and finalized.  

I think what happened, whatever that
discussion was, resulted in the settlement
discussion in the amount that they were originally
claiming was over $10,000, so part of the settlement
was to say, okay, we're going to reduce that by
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approximately 5,000, and then we'll consider the
claim settled.  

But I don't think there's any dispute that
the services were actually provided on behalf of the
Board.  I think it's probably just one of those
wrinkles of when the invoice was actually mailed or
if it fell between the cracks or something like
that.  But I think the work itself was under
contract.

CHAIR DENT:  I just want to add to this,
and since you were part of the negotiations, if
there's something that you would like to speak to
regarding that, you're welcome to, interim General
Manager.  

As it relates to this item and having sat
on that board, it's my understanding former general
manager and former board chair reached an agreement
with this law firm, and we were not going to be
paying anything further, given that we cannot find
anything in writing in any documentation of that.  

It has since come to our -- I guess, we
have since been noticed by the law firm that we
still owe them a bill.  

So, I think we all thought this was behind
us; however, there's nothing that has been
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documented, and now it's something that the interim
General Manager been tasked with figuring out.

Any further discussion?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I have a clarification

question:  Do we know whether this was within
budget, and do we know that this work that was
requested was approved by the board?

MR. BANDELIN:  I can't answer that.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That clears it up.  It

was my understanding that project had been closed,
and they authorized an amount to be spent.  

I just wanted some clarification.
Appreciate that.

CHAIR DENT:  I'll entertain a motion on
this.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll make a motion that
we approve the settlement as per the $7,200 to be
paid to Erickson, Thorpe and Swainston in settlement
for the work conducted in Smith vs. IVGID.

CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made.  Is there
a second?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion by the Board?  
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Seeing none, all those in favor, state

aye.  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.  
Motion passes, 4/0.  That will close out

item G 1, formerly F 1.  Moving on to item G 2.
G 2. 

CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly
appoint members of the community to the Board
Advisory Committee on Golf.  This can be found on
pages 586 through 633 of your board packet.  The
applicants are: Armand Simon, Seven Ross, Robert
Watson, Elyse Gut, John Johnson, Polly Wolf,
Katherine Holland, Robert Riccitelli, Harry Swenson,
Judy Miller, Todd Wilson, and, finally, Frank
Wright.

Trustee Tonking, this is your item, so I
will go ahead and pass this to you.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I believe Frank Wright
has removed his name, just as an update.

And then in terms of -- as you all know,
this has been a long process.  We had it scheduled,
we moved it because we felt like there should be
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alternatives for people who could not be here.  From
there, then we had it scheduled, but due to the
meeting changes, I had more than half of the
candidates not be able to show up, so we felt it
made sense to add -- to have them answer the
questions from the committee and do that with the
opportunity to speak during public comment.  So that
was the process that took place.  Chair Dent and I
had those discussions.  

And then my one concern, Annie, is I have
one waiver that has not been signed.  Does that
matter?  Is there a way we can work around if we
aren't talking about character?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  I will give you the
conservative legal advice.  I'll kind of explain
what the statute says and what's been done
historically, then, ultimately, you can make the
finally call, but I will give you a couple of
options that I would recommend.  

It's always been our recommendation since
we've been counsel that there are ways under NRS
241.033 that you can open up a discussion like this
for discussion of someone's competency/character,
you know, that term is pretty broad, it's been
interpreted pretty broadly, which is why it's always
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a recommendation to follow that statute.  

You can either provide notice, in advance,
by personal service or by mail in advance to the
person.  In that case, you don't need a signature,
you don't need the waiver, you don't need anything
like that.  The waiver is an alternative to that
option.  So if you send the wavier out, you let the
person know we're going to be discussing your
character, your competency, things like that, at
this meeting as it relates to the Golf Committee,
then they can sign the waiver voluntarily, return
it, and then we don't have to worry about the notice
procedures.  

It's always been our recommendation to
notice people.  I understand we have a couple
examples of people who have joined a committee and
said, Well, I don't remember receiving notice or
signing a waiver.  

Apologies if that's not been done in the
past.  It's -- we have documentation that we've
always advised that the wavier be signed or, at the
very least, that the notice be given in accordance
with the statute.  So, anything that's been done in
the past is not something we're discussing tonight.  

But we did try to get all the candidates
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to sign those waivers so that you guys could have an
open and frank discussion about the qualifications
of the committee members.  Given that one of the
candidates who, you know, one withdrew, didn't sign
the waiver, we have one remaining who didn't sign
the wavier, our recommendation, two parts, is either
to postpone this again so that we can provide
them -- she doesn't have to sign a waiver, but we
could provide her the notice and that way you can
have a full and open discussion of that candidate as
well.  Or just to remove that candidate from the
pool of potential applicants so that you don't have
to worry about the violation.  

But our recommendation is not necessarily
to go forward with a full discussion of every
candidate, including the one who didn't sign the
waiver, just over concern that section of the OML
would be violated.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have another question,
actually.  Is there a way around that if we don't
feel the need to talk about a candidate's character
right now?

MS. BRANHAM:  It's a gray area, I'll say.
We don't have a lot of guidance on what it means to
talk about character or competency.  Our advice on
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that point tends to be broad because it's not
entirely clear what a court would feel falls under
the category of character or competency.  

As you're discussing the qualifications of
someone for a committee, I think it's difficult to
say you're not falling within the broad category of
competency, just to choose one of the words.  That's
our thinking on it, that it's difficult to have a
discussion about a candidate without discussing
their competency.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  I was just going
to say, personally, I don't feel like there's a need
to talk about any candidate's competency.  But if
people feel differently, that they want to have a
robust discussion, then I do believe we remove that
one candidate.  But if people don't feel the need, I
think we can leave it.  I don't know how others
feel.

CHAIR DENT:  I'm very much in line with
you as it relates to this.  We've never had to go
through this process before as it relates to
noticing people, and this is a fairly new thing that
we are practicing, I guess, at the District.  And
I've asked legal counsel to brief all of us on this,
and it could be outside of this meeting because
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there's a lot of questions that have come up as
we've gone through this process.  

I am fine not talking about anyone's
character.  I appreciate all the applicants and
their willingness to be a part of this process.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think that's -- well,
I'll refrain from comment.  I know when I previously
applied to committees, this was never something
involved, but be that as it may.  

I would have thought that, given that
we're not able to interview the candidates in
question, as a member of the audience pointed out in
public comment, this is much more effective as a
two-way one, I think since we're not able to
actually do that, I think the only course of action
is to base or decisions based on forms returned.
We've told candidates that is going to be the modus
operandi, so I don't think it would be fair to
discuss candidates in any other form in the terms of
that.  All we can do is select candidates based on
the returns and based on our knowledge of people.

CHAIR DENT:  All right.  Okay.  Well, then
I think we are all on the same page that we're
fine moving forward, and we don't need to disqualify
someone for not signing the waiver that we didn't
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have time to notice them on.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Perfect.
So there is 11 candidates.  I believe that

Chair Dent sent us all an email to send to Annie or
her email address so we could send her with our
choices.  Does anyone want to have a discussion?

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I just want to say thank
you for all the qualified applicants.  This is not
an easy decision to narrow this down.  I was sort of
saying, Maybe we should pick a few so that when we
all put our votes in, there's names that will pop
up.

But just -- I want to acknowledge the
wonderful community members who have applied for
this committee.  There's a field that are very, very
well qualified, so if you're not selected, please
don't take anything personally.

CHAIR DENT:  Next steps would be we're
emailing Annie.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Then I'm guessing if
there's a bunch on the cusp, then we'll keep doing
this process.

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.  One thing maybe we do
is let's do -- we have four.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  We have five.
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CHAIR DENT:  Let's send our top five, and

that way it allows the process to move forward
without stopping.  Let's do our top five.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, not sure how you
can do five at once.

MS. BRANHAM:  If I could just jump in
really quick.  I can give you kind of a procedural
what we were thinking.  So you'll send me your top
five.  The email itself that you send me will be a
public record after the meeting, so just keep that
in mind.  It's for purposes of just aggregating so
that it's not clear who -- which specific trustee
voted for which specific person at this time.  

If you send me your top five, I'll collect
them all, and then what I am planning to do to is
count and say this candidate got five total votes,
top number one or number two, or I'll go through and
say how many votes each person got.  And then if we
need to rank further, we can.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  How about put them in
order one through five.

(Board sending emails to Ms. Branham.)
CHAIR DENT:  We're going to take a

five-minute break.  If you need the little bit more
time just let us know.  Resume at 7:15.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 37 of 309



  53
(Recess from 7:08 P.M. to 7:21 P.M.)
MS. BRANHAM:  We had one person get four

votes, that was the top, so that was Mr. Wilson.  We
had two people get three votes, that would be
Swenson and Riccitelli, apologies if I'm
mispronouncing any names.  I think we've got one,
two, and three set on the committee.  

Then we have a three-way tie with two
votes each.  So I think you'll need to discuss how
to go about choosing of these candidates.  So with
the three-way tie with two votes, we have
Mr. Johnson, Ms. Holland, and Mr. Simon for that
fourth spot.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Are you counting the
alternates in that?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  I took all five that
everyone named and added -- did everyone name them
in the order they wanted them picked in?  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I just make a point
of clarification?  Because, theoretically, if you
just count the alternates in there, theoretically,
one -- five people could vote for the same
alternate, and you can get more votes than the four
that we selected.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Can you tell us without
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the alternate, and then just do the top four,
without people's alternate?  

MS. BRANHAM:  Yep.  Sure can.  Give me one
more second.

CHAIR DENT:  We don't know.  The question
was:  Who was already selected?

You guys, turn your mics on when you're
talking, please.

MS. BRANHAM:  Okay.  That has narrowed it
down a bit.  We have -- not counting alternate votes
this time, we have Mr. Wilson with four, he would be
the top vote getter, and then we have Swenson with
three, and then Mr. Riccitelli with three, so that
would be one, two, and three.  Now we have a two-way
tie for Johnson and Simon.  That narrowed it down by
one person.

CHAIR DENT:  Johnson and Simon, this is
using the top four candidates.  Okay.  Committee
chair Tonking -- trustee Schmitz what's wrong?

(Inaudible response due to no mic.)
CHAIR DENT:  Correct.  We can have a few

minutes.
Trustee Tonking, do you want to discuss

the next steps?  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah, so I think then we
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take Johnson and Simon and decide and send an email
or text to Annie.

CHAIR DENT:  Correct.  
Trustee Schmitz, do you need a few more

minutes before we vote?
(Inaudible response due to no mic.)
CHAIR DENT:  All the candidates are good.

I would agree.  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I do have a concern that

we might think about going forward, is that the only
woman is going to be myself on that committee.  So
just a thought to think about if we need to think
about it going forward.  I just realized that.

CHAIR DENT:  Understand your concerns, but
I don't think that's one of the qualifications that
would -- yeah.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That if we want that
perspective, we do not have it.

CHAIR DENT:  Annie, have you received a
response from all of us?  

MS. BRANHAM:  Just waiting on Trustee
Schmitz.  

I have received the votes for the fourth
spot, and that will be Mr. Simon.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  So just to run through
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those, we have Mr. Wilson, Mr. Swenson, Mr. Simon,
and Mr. Riccitelli; is that correct?

MS. BRANHAM:  That's correct.  That
matches my record as well.

CHAIR DENT:  Thank you.  We appreciate you
helping us through that process.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, based on that, I'm
assuming, Annie, then if somebody drops out, the
alternate would be Mr. Johnson?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  As long as that works
for you all, if we get consensus on that, I'm fine
with that.

CHAIR DENT:  I will entertain a motion on
this item.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I make a motion to
nominate Mr. Wilson, Mr. Swenson, Mr. Riccitelli,
Mr. Simon, and Mr. Johnson as an alternate on to the
board-appointed Golf Committee.

CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made.  Is there
a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion by the Board?
Seeing none, call for question, all those

in favor, state aye.
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.  
Opposed?  Motion passes 4/0.  Thank you

for that.  And thank the committee members or our
newly formed Golf Committee.  We appreciate -- the
folks that weren't selected, we appreciate you
putting your name in the hat and thank all of you.  

That will close out item G 2 -- G 3.  That
will close out item G 3 -- G 2.  Moving on to item G
3.  

G 3.   
CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss the financial

ratification of the Department of Finance's staffing
increase and approval of recommended adjustments for
consulting services.  Requesting staff member
interim Director of Finance Bobby Magee.  This can
be found on page 634 through 646 of your board
packet.

MR. MAGEE:  Thank you, Chair Dent and
members of the Board.  

This item tonight, while it's a new staff
report and new item, this is a continuation of the
discussion that the Board held on August 9th and
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August 24th, and just to recap very, very briefly,
the actions the Board took at that time.  

On August 9th, the Board directed staff to
create an internal auditor position, and so we have
been working with the human resources director on
developing that job scope.  Then there were a number
of other items that were approved that are there in
the staff report.  

And then on August 24th, the Board
conceptually approved the addition of two positions,
one being an assistant director of finance, and the
second one being a management analyst.  And that was
pending final approval by the Board at tonight's
meeting.  I know that the Board had an interest in
looking at what the final title -- the recommended
title of these positions was, the salary grade, and
the job descriptions.  

And so just in the interest of full
transparency, we have attached the job descriptions
for all three of these positions; one has already
been approved by the Board, two of them were
conceptually approved by the Board pending final
approval, so that's what we're recommending tonight
is ratification of the remaining two positions.  

And I will say that the job descriptions
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that have been developed, they've been approved,
administratively, by the interim General Manager,
which is the normal process.  We've included them
into the Board's packet; however that is not a
recommended actionable item for tonight because, as
time moves on and these positions are recruited a
second time or a third time, staff would need the
flexibility in order to change a single word if they
needed to, and if the Board were to approve it,
staff would have to come back to the Board to make
any change at all.  So that's why we're including
that as information only.  

At the August 24th meeting, the second
item that the Board directed us to bring back was
identifying any additional consulting services that
may be needed for the future budget augmentation,
which I'm anticipating will come sometime in late
January, early February, once we get the final
figures worked out.  

And so there were two items that we
identified, and the first one is related to the
audit and what is known as the ACFR, the annual
comprehensive financial report, and actually putting
that document together.  That is a very
labor-intensive process that, right now with so many

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  60
vacancies in the finance department, we just don't
have the staff to be able to do that.  And so we
reached out to Davis Farr.  They indicated that they
would -- they did have capacity to help us with
putting that document together.  The expected cost,
they said, would be somewhere around $8- to $9,000.
We're recommending 10 so there's a little bit of
contingency money in there should anything go
sideways on that project.  

And the second item that we're
recommending has been completed in years past.  My
understanding is that previous director did one of
these a few years ago, which is a long-range fiscal
sustainability plan and a long-range financial plan.
And essentially what this document is is it takes a
look at the expected revenues over a ten year
period, the expected operating expenses and known
capital needs over that same period, and puts
together a plan, a thoughtful plan, on whether we
believe that budget solutions will be needed in
order to balance the budget in future fiscal years,
or if we believe that we're meeting the current
demands.  

And I will say to the Board that this is
more of a nice-to-have item tonight.  There are a
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number of things that staff would need to complete
before we could even issue an RFP for a long-range
financial plan or fiscal sustainability plan.  

We would need to, for example, take a look
and bring back to the Board some of the five-year
capital improvement projects, make sure that we're
all on the same page with what it is the Board's
priorities are prior to us being able to issue this
plan anyways.  

And so we were directed at the August 24th
meeting to identify these types of things, and I do
want to make it clear to the Board that if this item
is ultimately approved tonight, this will very
likely not be issued until the very end of the
fiscal year, and it may even roll into the next
fiscal year before an activity like this would be
able to commence, given all the other work that
needs to happen prior to this RFP for these types of
services being issued.  

With that, I'm happy to answer any
questions that the Board may have.

CHAIR DENT:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think, overall, this

is a good approach.  As we discussed in the
long-range financial plan, I think the difficulty in
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trying to do that is, given that we're not a
traditional government with just most of our
revenues coming from tax revenues, given that 75 to
80 percent of our revenues come from user fees, it
becomes a bit more speculative.  

And also looking at the Moss Adams
proposal, which I think we all recognized and need
to revise the strategic plan, I think, yeah, I would
park this until we improvise the strategic plan.  I
think it would be more effective then.  I don't
think it would show very much at the moment.  I
think we need to revise the strategic plan.  

And that would also need to integrate with
the long-term -- the five-year capital plan that,
hopefully, the Investment Committee is going to get
to.  

Otherwise, I think, yes, I'm on board with
this.  

One suggestion, you mentioned there will
be salary savings.  There's none of these savings
shown here.  Have you got an idea of what the level
of salary savings you're expecting?  

MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  That's correct.  And so
of the items that are listed on the table here, we
believe that that is the fully loaded cost if
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everything went completely sideways.  We believe
that the ultimate ask for the budget amendment will
be something less than that.  

Now, for example, the internal auditor
position, that current estimated cost cell, that is
the fully loaded cost and benefits salary of that
position for the entire fiscal year.  Obviously,
it's already September 19th, so we know we're not
going to spend that full amount.  

The reason we included into the table is
we're currently using consultants to provide some of
these services that we believe will ultimately be
filled through that position, the assistant director
of finance position, and the management analyst
position.  

What actual saving are, I would hate to
speculate.  What I will tell you is these items are
ready to go, the human resources director is
listening tonight.  If the Board ultimately ratifies
these last two positions, all three positions will
be floated within the next hour and out to the
public, and we will start the recruitment
immediately.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  Maybe I didn't
make myself clear.  Given that we have various
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vacancies in the finance department at the moment,
there will be commensurate salary savings there
because we've authorized additional funds for all
the consulting staff, haven't we?

MR. MAGEE:  That is correct.  And that's
one of the items that we will be looking at very
closely before we come back with a final recommended
budget augmentation, is that we know we have
existing vacancies within the department now, such
as the controller, the accounts payable technician,
and the senior accountant position, for example.
All of those are currently vacant.  And those will
be factored in.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm not sure if we've
confirmed it, but my understanding is we have a new
controller starting soon?

MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  I actually have
wonderful news on that front.  After the Board made
the adjustments to the controller position in the
way we advertised it and adjusting the salary grade
slightly, on August 9th, we instantly received just
a flood of highly qualified, highly educated
candidates, and we immediately jumped on that.  

We were able to identify the top-rated
candidate, and I'm exceptionally happy to announce
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that we expect her to start on October 9th, would be
her start date.  She is exceptionally well qualified
for this position.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Thank you.  That's
important.  The sky is not really falling, and the
last I looked, toilets still flushed and faucets
still run as well.  That's good.  And things are
moving forward on the finance front.  

One final point, I think there was an
excellent point made in public comment, which I
would fully support, with regard to the reporting
structure for the internal auditor.  I would ask you
to think about that as we move forward as well.  I
think that would be commensurate with my views on it
and my experience in these positions.

MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  Thank you.
For that, we did discuss that internally

at the staff level on whether this position should
report to the General Manager or directly to the
Board.  Obviously, we want this person to have a
degree of autonomy in doing their work.  And so here
in the western United States, it's a very common
structure to have the Board have one employee, which
would essentially be the General Manager, and that's
ultimately where we landed on this recommendation.  
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If the Board wished to have a second

employee, which would be the internal auditor, if
the Board would provide that direction tonight, we
can certainly make that change.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  I think the
suggestion that was floated was, yes, it's basically
reporting to the General Manager for wages and
conditions, if you like, and just the general
housekeeping, but also reporting line -- I think the
suggestion made was the director of the Audit
Committee, which I think it probably the safest
place, rather than reporting to the Board.  But
that's just a personal view.  I think that was the
comment expressed in public comment.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  One of the things
that -- in the job description for the internal
auditor, one of the things that I thought the Board
had given clear direction on is that we wanted the
internal auditor to also review and assist in
standard operating procedures, and I didn't see that
listed in the summary of responsibilities.  And so I
wanted to ask if that can be something that's added,
because I think that was the direction of the Board.

MR. MAGEE:  Sure.  We can certainly get
that added.  
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TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Then this -- I

spoke with Washoe County's internal auditor, but
this was a long time ago when I was working on
drafting the Audit Committee charter.  And I am
recalling that their internal auditor does report to
the general manager, but I believe with the dotted
line to the audit committee.

If that's not something that we feel
comfortable with and, perhaps, there should be some
sort of a dotted line to the Board.  The whole
reason behind it is to have assurance of
independence and have the ability for someone to not
be influenced one way or another, but to do their
job independently.  So, I think that's something
that should be thought about.

The other thing from my perspective is
that I still -- first of all, to back up, I concur
with Trustee Tulloch's comment about the long range.
I really like what you put in here, I thought it was
great, and this is something that the District
hasn't had and we really need it.  It helps us to
understand our long term, what we intend to have for
a rec fee and that sort of thing, so I think it's
good.  

But I do agree with Trustee Tulloch that,
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given where we are and given what we found with the
Moss Adams report, that, perhaps, we need to take
that step first.  So that will be on our long-range
calendar, I believe, to make sure we take the next
step with the Moss Adams report.  

But as it relates to the assistant
director of finance, I still -- I feel like you're
building a great team, and I'm not sure that that's
something that we need to actually act upon at this
time.  

I feel like we're maybe taking too much
on, and I don't disagree with it in concept, but I
think that now we're building a good accounting team
and we've got the controller coming in and we need
to work on these Moss Adams initiatives and we're
working on bringing in an internal auditor, I think
we should just take one step at a time.  I would
recommend that we sit tight on actively trying to
recruit and trying to fill that particular position
at this time.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm also in agreement
with Trustee Schmitz and Trustee Tulloch on removing
that long-range financial plan/fiscal sustainability
plan until a later date, especially given the
conversation you also mentioned that we might not
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even get into it until the next budget year.  So
maybe that's something we talk about during the
budget.

I was thinking in terms of the internal
auditor, you could even just do, like, a line that
says reports to GM, the Audit Committee, or Board of
Trustees, given whatever is the safest, because I
think Trustee Schmitz hit a good point that
sometimes none of those are the right people to
report to.  So I just think adding all options is
probably good.  

But in terns of the assistant director of
finance position, I was opposed to this position
until I sat down with interim Direct Magee, and we
spent a lot of time talking about this and then
during our discussion at the end of the month.  I
feel like this position is there to help deal with
that list of things that was brought to us, and I
it's think really important we start getting through
some that.  

So, I'm still in favor of that position.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  Just, again,

thinking out loud here, and I haven't discussed with
Director Magee or HR or anything.  Perhaps -- I hear
what both Trustee Schmitz and Trustee Tonking is
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saying.  Yeah, I'd also expressed concerns
previously about it.  

Maybe the correct approach now is -- we
have acting -- interim Director Magee -- interim
Director of Finance doing there and moving things
forward, maybe the option now is to go with this
assistant director in the meantime, and start slow
rolling, pull back on recruitment of the new
director of finance in the short term, since interim
Director Magee is covering things.  I think he's put
in place lots of good plans.  

Maybe that might be the sensible approach
in the short term.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  So are you suggesting
recruiting for the assistant director of finance
with the thought and expectation that that person
would take over the role of the director of finance?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Not necessarily at this
stage, but I think we have -- we need some
continuity here.  I think interim Director McGee has
been putting some really good plans together, but I
think that might be an option, rather than bringing
in an assistant director of finance, then suddenly
we've got another director of finance starting at
the same time, and we loose the continuity.  I kinda
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like the direction that we're actually achieving at
the moment.

CHAIR DENT:  I tend to agree with you on
that.  

And to your point, Trustee Schmitz,
perhaps the assistant director of finance does
become the director of finance, and I think that is
something we talked about a month or so ago when
this item came up, and we were working through it.  

As it relates to the long-range financial
plan, I'm fine putting that on hold for right now.
And I think I align with all three of my other
colleagues on the Board.

There was one other item on here that I
wanted to weigh-in on that you guys did.  Drawing a
blank.  The assistant director -- nope.  I don't
know.

I'll just say I think the discussion on
this item was good.  I do like that idea.  I think
that may be the right approach right now.  I mean,
if we do -- if we are recruiting for a director of
finance, we find a well-qualified individual, high
rating, and we bring them in, now we have two
director of finance that are kind of competing.
Right?  
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I think the right approach is just to

focus on that assistant director, potentially cool
down the recruiting aspect when it comes to the
director of finance, allow interim Director Magee to
continue to move forward with the plan he has in
place, and the plan he's implementing.  

Anyone else want to weigh-in on this item?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I will agree with you,

if we are filling this position with someone who
could potentially become a director of finance.
Because I think with the efforts that are being put
into play today, that the organization will be much
more stable and much more refined, as far as having
work processes, work procedures, that sort of thing.
So I think what we're doing is laying a good bedrock
for a solid finance department.  

And if we can recruit someone who
potentially could be a director of finance, then I
can support that.

CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on
this item?  Because I'll entertain a motion.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move that the Board of
Trustees ratify the additional positions of
assistant director of finance, grade 40, and
management analyst, grade 28, to the Department of
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Finance that were conceptually approved by the Board
at the August 24th, 2023, special board meeting,
while cooling down recruitment of the director of
finance.  

I also move that the Board of Trustees
approve the additional items identified by staff for
consulting services and direct staff to add the
items of future budget augmentation without the
long -- or with the exception of the long-range
financial plan and fiscal sustainability plan.

CHAIR DENT:  A motion's been made.  Is
there a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I have a question.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Further discussion by the Board?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  That motion didn't

include anything about the internal audit position.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm fine modifying the

motion to include adding some language around -- the
language discussed within the Board about the
internal auditor position.

CHAIR DENT:  Motion has been amended.
Second amended as well?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Second.  Yep.
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TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Amended again.
I will amend that again just to say that,

in addition, the job responsibilities will be
modified to include standard operating procedures as
part of the responsibility of the internal auditor.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That's fine.
CHAIR DENT:  Director Feore?
MS. FEORE:  Can I ask a quick question

regarding the direction from the Board on the
internal auditor position?  I overheard that the
recommendation is is that this position possibly
report to the General Manager and/or the Audit
Committee chair.  Did I understand that correctly?

CHAIR DENT:  Great question.  That's what
I wanted to weigh-in on.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  My understanding was
reports to the general manager, Audit Committee
chair or Board of Trustees, as the issue deems fair.

MS. FEORE:  Okay.  So my only question on
that one that I just wanted to ask is if the Audit
Committee chairperson is a volunteer, how does a
District employee report to a volunteer?  So that
would just be something that we can speak offline
about.  

And/or, Annie, maybe I can get some
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clarification from you on that one.  That would be
my only concern.  And I believe that's why we have
recommended that the position report to the General
Manager.  I did do some research.  

And, Trustee Schmitz, I did see that the
internal auditor position with Washoe County does
report to the management team there, but this is a
unique position.  

I just wanted to make sure I wasn't
misstating anything or misunderstanding the
direction.

CHAIR DENT:  Great questions.  We
appreciate you bringing those up.  I will go to
interim Director Magee.  And then I think maybe the
three or four of us give a little clarification on
how we think that that individual should be
reporting.

MR. MAGEE:  My question is for counsel.  I
want to make sure that we -- when we were discussing
this internally, we wanted to make sure that staff
had the ability to modify job descriptions moving
forward.  And if the Board makes the recommendation
to add this, then does that lock in this particular
job description or just lock in that statement,
even, on this particular job description?  
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Because we can certainly make that change

without a formal motion, I believe, but if the Board
has a level of comfort, we'll certainly accept that
direction.  I just would like some clarification on
what the human resources director authority would be
to modify this particular job statement moving
forward.

MS. BRANHAM:  I think the Board could,
maybe, clarify specifically if their intent is to
just include this specific statement in the
document, and then allow staff to make additional
changes in the future at their discretion, or if you
want the whole description itself to come to the
Board every time?

CHAIR DENT:  It's my understanding from
the discussion that was had at the Board that the
Board has added that section to the job description
to be included, per the discussion, the direction
the Board has formerly -- or already given to staff.

So, there's no new action being taken by
this board.  We are just saying the Board has
already directed staff to do this, and we're just
asking that that be cleaned up and that description
be modified to that prior direction the Board has
given.
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Do we still have concerns?
MS. FEORE:  Annie, I don't know if this is

something that you can speak on, but if the position
has a reporting responsibility to a committee
member, have you seen that in other agencies, and
how does that typically work?

MS. BRANHAM:  No.  I don't want to get out
over my (inaudible) and say for sure it is or it is
not permissible, but I'm happy to look into it if
the Board wants a specific paragraph in the job
description.  

It may be that there are legal concerns
with one of these approaches.  And so we may want to
double check that before we have a motion to
formally add a certain phrasing to the job
description.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  Continuing on with our
discussion.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  For clarification, I
don't think that the Board is indicating that they
want this job description to be the responsibility
and -- of the Board.  

We were just giving feedback that had
already been provided, and so we would expect that
staff would just take that feedback and going
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forward, this is staff's -- staff has the authority
to change the job description.  We just wanted to
add the one thing that we had requested prior.  Does
make sense?

And as it relates to reporting to a
committee, I fully appreciate the concern.  Perhaps
what we should suggest for assurance of independence
of the internal auditor, that they report to the
General Manager, and they have a dotted line to the
Board Chair.  So that there is another path if that
internal auditor runs across something that they
feel needs to come to the Board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yes, I tend to concur
with Trustee Schmitz.  I think it's important
that -- my view is that the internal auditor reports
to the General Manager for paying rations, for want
of a better phrase.  But it's important -- it's
essential the internal auditor has independence.  

The internal auditor should not need to go
through the whistle blower policy if something was
-- in the unlikely circumstance that something was
rejected or sat on by the General Manager.  

So, I'm okay with that -- with the dotted
line reporting to the Board Chair, I think makes an
acceptable compromise.
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm fine with it, but

what do we do with this motion?
MS. BRANHAM:  For clarity, we should

consider the previous motion dead, if we have a
consensus on that, and then, maybe, start over with
a new motion.

CHAIR DENT:  The previous motion has
failed, and I will entertain another motion.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Trustee Schmitz, I may
need you to add the one thing about operations.
But -- okay.  

So, I move that the Board of Trustees
makes a motion to ratify the additional positions
for assistant director of finance, grade 40, the
management analyst, grade 28, for the Department of
Finance that were conceptually approved by the Board
at the August 24th, 2023, special board meeting,
while cooling down recruiting for the director of
finance.  

Additionally, I move that the Board of
Trustees make a motion to approve the additional --
the Board of Trustees approve the additional items
identified by staff for the consulting services and
direct staff to add the items to the future budget
augmentation without the long-range financial
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plan/fiscal sustainability report, to add a line
asking the internal auditor to report to the GM with
a dotted line to the Board Chair, as well as the
internal auditor, to be part -- overview the
operations.

CHAIR DENT:  A motion's been made.  Is
there a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second it.  
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  No further discussion, I'll call for
question.  All those in favor state, aye.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.  
Motion passes, 4/0.  All right.  That will

close out item G 3.  Moving on to item G 4, formerly
G 3.

G 4. 
CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly

adopt Board Policy 23.1, policy regarding access to
confidential non-public information.  This can be
found on pages 647 through 652 of your board packet.

Annie, would you like to provide an
overview of this policy we're seeing for the a first
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time?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  I would be happy to.
And thank you for saying that.  What I was going to
kick off with was this is our first time considering
this policy.  I understand, in particular, there's
still a highlighted portion, so there may be
discussion, this policy may need to come back.  Just
putting that out there in the beginning, but let me
give you a brief overview of how we got here.  

Historically, trustee access was more
restrictive, and I understand that trustees used to
have to put in public records requests to get access
to certain information, which doesn't always
contribute to a strong staff/leadership connection.

So, modern practice has been for trustees
to be able to access District documents and
information, with the exception of certain things,
which include personnel files for all employees,
other than the general manager.  So there's not a
lot that you don't have access to, but what this
policy is intended to do is capture the range of
types of documents where you, as trustees, have
special access to those documents, they are not
necessarily public documents, and they should not be
disclosed as such.  And there are a limited category
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of documents that even the trustees don't have
access to because you only employ the general
manager, and so personnel files go through the
general manager only, and/or, perhaps, human
resources.  

So, a general, brief summation is that
there are four types of documents, which would be,
going from least restrictive to most, public
records, which anyone can access.  Trustees have
free access to them, the public, if they put in a
public records request, has access to them.  

Second, there are personnel files, other
than the GM, which trustees do not have access to,
the public does not have access to.  So those are
pretty restricted documents.  

And then there's the category that we're
calling "non-public and confidential."  So, those
are documents to which some kind of privilege has
attached, and it would take a majority vote of the
Board to decide to waive that privilege and release
the documents anyway.  So there's a layer of
additional protection there.  Although the Board
itself is entitled to view those documents.  

And then, fourth and finally, GM personnel
records, which the Board does have access to as the
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employer of the general manager.  

So, that's kind of the brief
categorization.  We've given some examples of those
types of documents in the policy itself, but I will
remain available for any questions that the Board
may have.

CHAIR DENT:  Questions from my colleagues?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I just have two quick

questions.  
Is this the type of policy you would see

in other organizations similar to this?  
MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  There's frequently --

it's not always entirely clear, and that's not on
this board, that is just in general, the way that
the law is.  It's not always clear what trustees
have access to that is above or different than what
the public generally has access to, so it's not
uncommon to clarify by giving examples or by setting
up specific definitions of what those documents are,
when you have access to them, when you do not have
access to them, and how you can sort of override
claims of privilege to release them, regardless.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  In terms of the
non-public information, how are we deciding that and
how are we making sure trustees are informed if
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something is non-public and making sure we're not in
violation of NRS 239?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yeah.  It's going to be a
case-by-case determination, as is the case for all
public records.  So when we get -- one way that it
could happen, we might get a public records request
for a certain document from a member of the public,
and determine, through application of the law, that
it's not a public record.  It doesn't meet the
criteria in some way, either it's privileged or it's
not ordinarily held by the District, it doesn't meet
the criteria in some way to be a public record.  

That doesn't mean that the trustees do not
have access to that document.  So that's intended to
capture the limited situation where, for some
reason, a document -- I think the example we give
here would be documents regarding recreational
privileges, which might come out from the HR
department, or fees.  Documents involving fees, a
lot of times will have personal information related
to them, and so they're not public records, but you
would have access to them.  

So, that's what that category is intended
to capture.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think I understand the
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concepts behind this, Annie.  I think there's -- to
your earlier statement, I think there's still a lot
of work to be done.  

If I look at 0.6, I've got to say I'm kind
of confused by this.  That's maybe not surprising.
But what's the point of trustees not disclosing
copies or excerpts if their entitled to discuss the
underlying facts and circumstances?  Because then
it's affect, we're putting the whole thing out
there.  

It's also -- it leads to ambushing of
trustees or of the public because it's only here the
trustees shall confer with the general manager and
general counsel, not with other board members.  

If I look at employee access to
information, 0.7, there's no details for what's
there.  The Board should not be finding these
confidential documents released on social media by
current or former staff members, that should not be
the first we're aware of them.  I think it needs a
lot of work there.  I think it needs to be very
carefully defined which documents we're talking
about, which staff are actually able to access
these, and there should be full logs of any access
to these.  So I think that needs a lot of work there
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as well.

And I think in violations, it obviously
needs remedies for violations, both by trustees and
by staff.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I think that this is a
good start.  I want to back up a second because this
limitations on access, to me, it just is another
type of classification, and it should be
confidential and non-public.  It should just state:
The trustees do not have access to HR files.  

I mean, I just think that putting it here,
as opposed to being over categorically different, it
just lays it out.  Okay?  We have access to these
things; we don't have access to this.

From my perspective, when you look at the
confidential, when it says "non-public information,"
I don't think that -- I think, frankly, this
document, it should say "documents that are related
to IVGID that are not confidential, but are not
public record, that they should not be discussed."  

I mean, I don't know how you can have
something that's not public information, and then
allow the trustees to discuss it publicly.  Then
it's not non-public information.

So, if the trustees are allowed to discuss
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non-public information publicly, then why isn't that
a public record?

So, to me, the non-public information, we
may not be discussing this publicly.  That's how I
see it.  Otherwise, it just opens up a Pandora's
box, in my opinion.

So, that would be my suggestion that if
it's not a public document, it cannot be discussed
publicly.  Period.  Otherwise, it's a public
document.  

Then over in the request for information,
in the yellow text, I appreciate the fact that you
highlighted this in yellow.  Given what has
transpired in the past month or so, my feeling is
that it is -- anything to be provided should be --
go back to the old, hard copy with confidential
stamped on it, and we are able to review it, but
only in a printed hard copy that we don't take
pictures of, and it gets handed back to staff for
shredding.  Because the minute you share something
electronically, you have the opportunity for
somebody, inadvertently, to suddenly share it
publicly, and that would be putting the District at
legal risk.  So, that would be my recommendation.

And then in the duty not to disclose, it
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says, "The trustees should not disclose any
confidential or non-public information."  That is
our duty.  Otherwise, it's public information.  So,
those are the things.  

Then under 07, which Trustee Tulloch just
touched on, perhaps it should be added to say that
the general manager will implement policies for the
control and access of documents, because I think,
you know, that's part of it as well; it's not just
the access, it's control and the access.  So, those
are my suggestions.  

One other point, which is in the bottom of
.04, the very last sentence, it says "The entire
Board of Trustees will be promptly notified."  I
would change to say "immediately notified of any
request under this subsection," so that we have the
opportunity to review the same materials.

Those are my comments and suggestions.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Do you think it would be

beneficial if we sent any of our edits to Annie and
Josh, and go from there?  Because I also have some,
but I don't need to walk through them all.

CHAIR DENT:  Correct.  And I think we all
have -- there may be some similar ones, and so we
shouldn't be restating them.  
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Are you guys okay with sending an email to

Josh and Annie so the recommendations that you
brought forward for changes then get added to the
document, and it's brought back as a draft at a
future meeting?

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I have no problem, but I
really would like to hear if there's other areas
that Trustee Tonking wants to have thought about.  I
mean, we're here to discuss it, so I'd welcome that
opportunity.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm fine at this moment.
CHAIR DENT:  And I agree with a lot of

things that Trustee Schmitz brought forward, and
same with Trustee Tulloch.  I don't need to repeat
every single one of those.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I guess what I'm saying
is, like, there are some of the things that you said
that I agree with; some I don't.  And so then I'll
just, like, add similar track changes along those
lines.  Then I think we can all talk about our track
changes together, if that kinda makes sense, like
we've done in the past policy reviews.

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah, I think that's fine.  
Annie, that's fine, as long as we -- none

of us know what each other put -- our
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recommendations are until it's brought forward in a
board packet; correct?

MS. BRANHAM:  Yes.  Please send them,
individually.  It would be great if you could do
them in track changes.  

And then what we will do on our end is try
and look for areas where there is some kind of
consensus, if we can phrase it in a way that seems
to align multiple edits.  If not, we'll kind of
present any conflicting edits to you guys at the
next meeting, and then, yeah, go from there.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Annie, also in the past,
we've done it -- or I guess, maybe, it was just
Trustee Schmitz and I did it on one document.  But
we each had our, like, a combined version, and then
our each, individual, track changes so we could walk
through some of those too, which might be helpful
for us all to see.  

MS. BRANHAM:  You would like a version
with all of the changes in, maybe, different colors
or something like that?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Or just, like, a
separate section for each of us too.  Like, you'd
have your combined, and then you would just have --
so that we don't forget what we had said, also.  
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MS. BRANHAM:  Yes, that can be done.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  You don't think about

the boomers here.
CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on

this item?
Annie, we appreciate your overview, and we

will be sending you an email.  The turnaround for
the next meeting is too short, so I'm assuming we
can bring this back at the October 11th meeting.
Would that be a goal we can shoot for?  

MS. BRANHAM:  That works for me.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I am in Thailand on the

11th.  So I will not be joining, due to the
15-and-a-half-hour time difference.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  So then -- and then
Trustee Noble hasn't weighed-in on this either, so,
Annie, if we could get his feedback on some of these
changes or concerns with the policy as well.

MS. BRANHAM:  If you want to push it to
the second meeting in October, that will be the one
that I'm covering, so for continuity, it might be
better anyway.  That way -- I mean, Josh can
obviously handle it as well.  Just wanted to bring
that up.

CHAIR DENT:  Any concerns by the Board?  
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We'll shoot for the last meeting in

October for bringing that back.  Thank you.
All right.  That will close out item G 4.

Moving on to item H.  
H.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS.  

CHAIR DENT:  Redactions.  No action on
this item.  Moving on to item I.
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR DENT:  The long-range calendar can
be found on pages 653 through 657 of your board
packet.

MR. BANDELIN:  I'm all over the place with
this long-range calendar.  It's changed quite a bit.

CHAIR DENT:  Feel free to make the changes
to this like you did with the GM report, and we
could see what you come up with.

MR. BANDELIN:  Yeah, we're hoping to have
packet material out tomorrow or early Friday
morning.

CHAIR DENT:  Any concerns or questions
with the long-range calendar?  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, for the September
27th meeting, I'd like to add the Moss Adams -- the
update from Moss Adams and potential action items.  

CHAIR DENT:  If you would like to have
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that at the next meeting, then the packet material
needs to be to the clerk first thing in the morning,
and I need your agenda item, because it's on my desk
for approval.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Does the packet need to
be for tomorrow morning?  I can give the agenda
item.

CHAIR DENT:  The agenda item needs to be
for tomorrow.  We could publish supplemental
information at a later time.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, I think -- yeah.
CHAIR DENT:  We could put that on the

agenda for you guys, and then we can give you a
couple extra days to think about it.  But we have a
quick turnaround.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yep.
CHAIR DENT:  Is that fair?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yep.
CHAIR DENT:  Okay.
We just added another one to your list.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I just had an item on

here about additional training, which made me think
about when we were scheduling our second training.

CHAIR DENT:  Good question.  I will work
with our district clerk.  The General Manager and I
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had a conversation on that earlier today.  The goal
would be to schedule for next week and do something
in the later afternoon.  And we'll send an email
for -- and it's more of a board training this time,
using past examples of things.

Any other questions?
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  On October 25th, with

the carryforward, we have -- that was pulled from an
agenda a meeting or so ago.  If that is what this
is, the carryforward, I'd like to make sure that we
add the Diamond Peak van at the same time because
that was an agenda item that was needed to carry
over.  So if we could please get that on the same
agenda, that would be great.

I think we should put on an agenda, in the
near term, a community survey.  I think that it's
really important that we discuss our five-year plan.
We have not had any discussion about our five-year
plan.  It was included in our budget, but we never
discussed it.  And I think that if we're going to be
discussing a five-year plan, I think the first step
is to do a broad community survey to get feedback on
what community's priorities are so that we can
incorporate that and have a discussion when talk
about our five-year plan.
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I think that we need to make sure that we

have on our agenda the RFP for the forensic due
diligence.  

And I had spoken with you, when is that
going to be on the agenda?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would like to add
that -- I've been working with interim Director
McGee.  Our objective was to try and have that at
the next meeting.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Which next meeting,
September?  

CHAIR DENT:  September 27th.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Okay.
CHAIR DENT:  I look forward to seeing your

agenda item in the packet material in the morning.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  No pressure.
TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.
And then I think that other thing is is

that I believe the utility master plan should be
roughly coming to conclusion.  I think we approved
that, roughly, about a year ago, so I'd like to at
least get on our long-range calendar, perhaps, in
November, just at least to review it and see what it
has to say.  

But I also think skate park that we have
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now pushed all the way to November 8th needs to be
pulled in.  We've been -- that was brought to the
Board -- what? -- in April or May, and November is
really pretty late.  I want to make sure that we've
got time to review it and if there's changes or what
not, but it seems like that's been pushed into the
future a bit far.  And maybe it has to be there.

The other thing that is not on our agenda
that was supposed to be is that we were supposed
hear back from staff about the winter beach
operations, how they were recommending we handle
winter beach operations, and that hasn't been put
back onto our long-range calendar.  

And I think we also have to make some
decisions about the dog park, and that those
community surveys haven't gone out and I don't see
on our calendar either.  

So those are things I think we need to not
forget about.

CHAIR DENT:  Our clerk is taking notes
over there, so I think cleaning up this long-range
calendar and getting some of these items that we've
had pushed off is very important.

General Manager Bandelin, do you want to
speak to the skate park item that's been pushed off?
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It was July, then August, October, and now November.

MR. BANDELIN:  That's staff's intention
coming from our engineering and project management
team, that the bandwidth that we're allowed right
now is having the beach facility in there and the
skate park.  Just providing the information of how
they've scheduled those particular meetings to come
back and discuss those items.

CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Schmitz, it's my
understanding they're bringing back proposals when
they come back in November.

MR. BANDELIN:  Correct.  So it's actually
in the venue status report.  And we have an
agreement with the Incline Beach House design build
award on November 8th.  And also at that same
meeting, November 8th, is the agreement skate park
design build award.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  One more.  One more is
that I know that -- I apologize, I should have the
date.  I don't have it.  But we have RPP that is out
for point of sales systems.  And I believe that they
were to be returned back to the District sometime in
October, so I think that we should probably have
that penciled in early November as well.

MR. BANDELIN:  That's correct.  I think
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questions to be answered were the third week in
September, from the people receiving the proposal,
and then, I think, second or third week in October
when they were due.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I'll defer to the
General Manager when that needs to be scheduled.  I
just don't want it to be forgotten.

MR. BANDELIN:  Right.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I see on October 25th,

it's the effluent pipeline GMP2 award.  My
understanding was that the Board wanted to see what
was happening on the CMAR fee, and it wasn't
necessarily award, it was to decide whether we were
going to go out to bid, or as opposed to just
awarding it to existing contractor.  Unless that's
going to be one of the options presented to the
Board at the time.

MR. BANDELIN:  I believe what you'll see
is -- we talked about it when -- at the last meeting
when we talked about the 90 percent GMP2 discussion
with Mr. Klien, that were waiting for the other
bidding opportunities for the third-party
contractors to come up with a full GMP2 price, and
then we would present that to the Board.  And then
there would be discussion at some level of -- on

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  99
discussion of moving forward with the process.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  It's not actually award.
It's just effluent pipeline GMP2 costings and
things, rather than the actual award.  I think
that's probably the change.  

MR. BANDELIN:  Okay.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Thank you.
MR. BANDELIN:  Then if I might just add,

to your question about beach access and staffing
during the winter, I think that was addressed from
the Director of Parks and Recreation in a GM report.
I can pull it back.  That was a conclusion made from
talking with counsel Kathy Parks, I believe.  

And so let me respond back to that
particular question in a narrative that was included
in the General Manager report a few meetings back.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  Just making sure there
isn't action that needs to be taken on our part and
something is not going to happen because we didn't
plan to take action.  So if you could get back to us
offline regarding where we're at in that process,
we'd appreciate it.  

Any additional questions regarding the
long-range calendar?

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  From our last meeting, I
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had a note, and it said "IVGID survey.  IVGID
Magazine survey results," and I had the note under
the September 27th, but I don't see it on the
September 27th.  So what was the plan with that?

MR. BANDELIN:  We will be bringing the
District advertising policy to the Board on the
September 27th meeting.  And the survey is actually
still open until the middle of October.  But I'm
sure Mr. Raymore might be able to give you a little
preview of survey results at the September 27th
meeting, in regards to the magazine users survey
responses.

CHAIR DENT:  Anyone else, long-range
calendar questions?  

That will close out item I 1.  Moving on
to item J.  
J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 

CHAIR DENT:  Any updates for Board of
Trustees?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just to say we're having
the first meeting of Capital Improvement/Investment
Committee on Tuesday, 2:00 P.M., so that's
scheduled.  We're having it in person and with Zoom
access for some of the members that can't make it.
I felt it was important for the first meeting to
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 101
have it in person.

Thank you to Mr. Clark and General Manager
Bandelin for making the arrangements there.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  I have a few updates.  
As it relates to contracts, we discovered

that there was an issue with actually converting
from Word to PDF that caused some errors.  There's
been some technical analysis that has been done and
some additional review that is going to be done to
ensure that we don't have errors that are introduced
during that conversion process.  

Also working with legal counsel and
staff -- I'm not working with them, but they are
working together to define the process for signing
because it appears that a contract was dated prior
to the fixes being made to the contract, so we're
reviewing that.  So things are improving, but we're
still having some challenges.  

And I will produce a formal written, you
know, my Excel spreadsheet, I'll get that updated.
I just hadn't had time before this meeting.  

The thing I actually really enjoy about
reviewing the contracts is that I know what's going
on, I know we're doing the slurry sealing, I know
that we're doing the geotech on the tennis courts,
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so I'm in the know.  I like that.

Then, as it relates to pickleball, I had
my first opportunity to meet with their
self-appointed committee and with the Director of
Parks and Rec and also the manager of the Tennis and
Pickleball Center.  They're being very proactive,
and their next step is to conduct an elected group,
as opposed to a self-appointed group, and they
actually have drafted an informal charter.  And once
they have their non-self-appointed but their elected
group, they will be bringing to the Board their
charter for us review.  So I'm pretty excited about
that.  It's a great group of people.

And then I also, as it relates to the
beach liaison, I wanted to just at least update the
Board.  It was brought to our attention, if you
recall from public comment, that the water safety
class was not allowed to be conducted at our beaches
this year.  And I was unaware of that because we had
discussed -- the Director of Parks and Rec and
myself had discussed a process of how the schools
would still have their opportunity to use the
beaches for their water safety.  

But what I learned is that the Director of
Parks and Rec had been informed by the Washoe County
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School District that they would not allow the
elementary school to provide rosters that would
allow IVGID to verify beach access, and because of
Family Education Rights and Privacy Act -- I don't
know why this particular privacy act created an
issue for elementary school because I was informed
the middle school was able to access it, as was the
Lake Tahoe School, so there's some issue that needs
to be investigated as to why the elementary school
wasn't able to conduct their program at the beach.  

So, I'm still learning.  I don't know what
the fix is.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Maybe this goes back to
long range, but can we bring an item that discusses
this to the Board about Washoe County School
District and access to students?  Because I've
(inaudible) it, and we probably can't discuss it
now.  

And then I'd also like an item brought to
the Board that talks about what we're going to do
with committees that decide to be their own
committee versus board -- we just really need to,
like, hash that out.  

So I would like both of those added to
long range to be addressed too.  Thank you.
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MR. BANDELIN:  Yeah, could there be

possible discussion on the Board of Trustees town
hall open forum?  On the calendar on September 27th,
we were just asking if there might be some
discussion on what that forum looks like.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.  I have a memo to
give you on that forum by tomorrow morning.

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.  And we can talk about
that, because what we did talk about was we would be
here an hour before the meeting to have discussion
with our bosses, the community.  I don't know if we
need a formal memo, but we could talk about that
offline.

TRUSTEE SCHMITZ:  And I will share with
the Board the information that I was given from the
Director of Parks and Rec when I asked about this
situation, because we -- I thought we had a plan.
Obviously we didn't, and they ended up at Sand
Harbor.  

So I will work to try to find some
additional information on this, and share it with
the Board.

CHAIR DENT:  And then I do have an
announcement I'd like to make that the Secretary of
State has investigated my financial disclosure
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 105
statement, per the two complaints they received, and
they have closed out and dismissed the allegations
against me.  I'm happy to include the complaints, as
well as the letter I received from the Secretary of
State into the record for these meeting minutes.
And I'll provide that to the district clerk.

Any other questions, concerns, issues,
trustee topics?  

All right.  That will close out item J.
Going on to item K.  
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

CHAIR DENT:  Do we have any final public
comment from those still in the room?  Seeing none,
let's go to Zoom.

MS. KNAAK:  Yolanda Knaak, Martis Peak
Drive.  

I just wanted to congratulate those
members of the Golf Committee.  And, also, I wanted
to thank the IVGID Board for all their hard work.  

Thank you.
MR. DOBLER:  Yeah, this is Cliff Dobler

here.  
I'd like to have you pay attention for a

couple of minutes.  I'm not opposed to any staffing
of the accounting department because I've told you
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over the last six years that it's been very
deficient.  

But I really think you need to study this
general fund and realize that what you're pulling on
board and then also adding the parks to the general
fund and then errors in the existing budget, you're
going to be flat broke by the end of next year.

So I don't know what you're planning on
doing, but your revenue on the general fund is more
or less fixed by just property taxes, personal
property taxes, so they don't get any fees, other
than these taxes.  

So I think this general fund should be
looked at earlier than January, what Mr. Magee said,
and then there ought to be something to tell the
public that if you want to go with all this staff
and keep the parks in the general fund, then you're
going to have raise, substantially, the central
service cost allocations, which mean more expenses
will be going to the venues, which mean rates will
have to go up at the venues, or it's going to have
to be subsidized by the facility fees.

But I don't know if this is something that
should wait for the next three or four months.  It's
one fund, but you're whacking it.  Last year, by the
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end of June, you had 5.3 million, and you're
expecting to only have 2.6 million at the end of
June, but you just added a 1.1 or 1.2 million, and
then you have a half-a-million-dollar mistake.  So
you won't even meet board policy on reserves.  

And I really think you should maybe look
at this.  You talk about long-range calendars, I
think this, a long range, is maybe a year, that that
might be considered long range.  

So, you know, Tonking, you can pay
attention or not, but at any rate, that's all I got
to say.  I think this is a serious problem that
should be looked at.

CHAIR DENT:  That will conclude public
comment.  We will move on to item L.  
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR DENT:  It is 8:35.  I want to thank
all my colleagues and staff.  We are adjourned.

(Meeting adjourned at 8:35 P.M.)
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STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on September 19, 2023, 

at the Public Meeting, via Zoom, and took stenotype 
notes of the proceedings entitled herein, and 
thereafter transcribed the same into typewriting as 
herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of 108 pages, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this 25th day of 
September, 2023. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH 
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INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 4

Invoice Date: September 25, 2023

Payment Due: October 19, 2023

Amount Due (USD): $998.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Appearance fee
September 19, 2023 BOT meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
September 19, 2023 BOT meeting

108 $6.00 $648.00

Subtotal: $998.00

Total: $998.00

Amount Due (USD): $998.00
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